
1

Contact Officer:
Maureen Potter 01352 702322
maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

To: Councillor Robin Guest (Chairman)

Councillors: Alex Aldridge, Bernie Attridge, Glyn Banks, Haydn Bateman, 
Chris Bithell, Clive Carver, David Cox, Paul Cunningham, Glenys Diskin, 
Veronica Gay, George Hardcastle, Christine Jones, Dave Mackie, Neville Phillips, 
Aaron Shotton, Nigel Steele-Mortimer, David Williams, David Wisinger and 
Arnold Woolley
(+ I vacancy Independent Alliance Group)

26 January 2017

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Constitution Committee which will be held 
at 2.30 pm on Wednesday, 1st February, 2017 in the Delyn Committee Room, 
County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA to consider the following items:

Please note that the meeting will commence at 2.30 p.m. or on the rising of the 
Democratic Services Committee, whichever is the latest.  

A G E N D A

1 APOLOGIES 
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING 
DECLARATIONS) 
Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3 MINUTES (Pages 3 - 8)
Purpose: To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting held 
on 5 October 2016.

4 AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION (Pages 9 - 12)
Having regard to ongoing organisational changes, to seek the committee’s 
authority for the Chief Officer (Governance) and the Democratic Services 
Manager to change job titles within the Constitution as necessary.

Public Document Pack



2

5 CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Pages 13 - 46)
To receive the updated Code of Corporate Governance following 
endorsement by the Audit Committee

Yours sincerely

Robert Robins
Democratic Services Manager

r



1

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE
5 OCTOBER 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Constitution Committee of Flintshire County 
Council held in County Hall, Mold, on Wednesday, 5 October 2016.

PRESENT: Councillor Nigel Steele-Mortimer (Vice Chair in the Chair)
Councillors: Alex Aldridge, Glyn Banks, Haydn Bateman, Chris Bithell, Clive 
Carver, David Cox, Paul Cunningham, George Hardcastle, Dave Mackie, Neville 
Phillips, Aaron Shotton, Nigel Steele-Mortimer, David Williams and Arnold 
Woolley

SUBSTITUTIONS:  Councillor Andy Dunbobbin (for Christine Jones)

APOLOGIES:  Councillor Veronica Gay 

IN ATTENDANCE:
Chief Officer (Governance), Member Engagement Manager, Internal Audit 
Manager, Principal Auditor, and Committee Officer 

1. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR

Councillor George Hardcastle nominated Councillor Nigel Steele-Mortimer 
as Vice-Chair of the Committee.  This was duly seconded and supported by the 
Committee.

RESOLVED:

That Councillor Nigel Steele-Mortimer be appointed Vice-Chair of the 
Committee.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Glyn Banks declared a personal interest in the following item:

Item 5:  Contract Procedure Rules

3. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 27 April 2016 were 
submitted.

Matters arising

Councillor Chis Bithell referred to his comments on page 4, concerning 
declarations of personal and prejudicial interest and asked if the Chief Officer 
(Governance) had received a response to the request for clarification from the 
Ombudsman.   Councillor Bithell also asked if the Chief Officer had received a 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2

response from the Welsh principal councils concerning the upper level of gifts 
and hospitality which did not require registration.   The Chief Officer reported that 
the Ombudsman had recently issued revised guidance on the Code of Conduct 
which would be circulated to all Members.  He advised that there was no change 
to the current procedures concerning declarations of personal and prejudicial 
interest.  The Chief Officer explained that there was no further information to 
report regarding the level of registration of gifts and hospitality.  

RESOLVED:

That the minutes be received, approved and signed by the Chairman as a 
correct record.

4. CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES  

The Chief Officer (Governance) introduced the report to seek approval of 
the revised contract procedure rules (CPRs).  He provided background 
information and explained that it was appropriate to revise the CPRs in light of 
changes to European procurement law, the introduction of the Well Being of 
Future Generations Act, the move to electronic procurements and the 
introduction of the new welsh language standards.  He advised that the 
proposed new CPRs were simpler and more consistent in terminology, which 
would improve understanding and compliance, and put greater focus on planning 
the procurement route and early approval/authorisation.  

The Chief Officer reported on the key changes in the proposed CPRs, and 
the work being undertaken around community benefits, as detailed in the report 
and the document appended.   He also referred to the need for awareness 
training for those people who specifically undertake procurement.  The Chief 
Officer commented on the concerns around contract management which had 
been raised by the Audit Committee and said these would be addressed by the 
revised CPRs.  

Councillor Aaron Shotton spoke in support of the aim to achieve as much 
as possible out of public procurement for the benefit of the community; citing the 
opportunity for apprenticeships as an example.  He also referred to the positive 
outcomes gained in England as a result of the Social Value Act.  

The Chair invited Members to raise questions.

Councillor Clive Carver referred to the community benefits and expressed 
concern regarding how they might be perceived.  The Chief Officer responded to 
the points raised and explained that the cost of the benefits would not 
necessarily be passed back to the Authority through the contract.

Councillor Dave Mackie said there was no reference to Equality Impact 
Assessments in the report.  He also commented on the reference to ‘approved 
lists’ in section 1.11 of the appended report and asked for more information on 
this.  Councillor Mackie raised further concerns around the All Wales Agreement 
which he felt excluded the opportunity for local businesses/tradespeople to 
compete for business. 

Page 4



3

The Chief Officer responded to the matters raised by Councillor Mackie.  
He explained that the mechanism to address the Authority’s obligation to carry 
out Equality Impact Assessments was addressed under the risk management 
section of the report and added that the CPRs would require the contract to be 
compliant with the Council’s equality duties and those under the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations Act .   He also commented on  the approved lists which had 
been used by the  Authority for a long time and said contractors on the lists had 
not always been given work and the lists were not as accurate as required.      

Addressing the concerns raised by Councillor Mackie regarding the All 
Wales Agreement the Chief Officer explained that the Agreement was expected 
to provide better value for service overall.  However, if that proved not to be the 
case  and a better local arrangement was available and evidence of such 
provided  to the national procurement service, then the All Wales service would 
not be used.  He explained that the Authority could give advice and support to 
encourage small/medium local businesses about how to best present 
themselves to bid  for major contracts.  

Councillor Alex Aldridge expressed concerns around the Authority’s 
‘internal recharges’ which increased the cost of work or services provided and 
prevented the Authority from being competitive in the market.  The Chief Officer 
referred to the governance costs associated with providing and maintaining the 
standards/requirements imposed on the Authority which were not on the 
approved contractors.  Whilst the Council kept these costs to a minimum there 
would always be a need for high standards of governance in a local authority.  

Councillor David Wisinger expressed concerns regarding contractors who 
then sub contracted work to other companies and asked how issues arising from 
poor workmanship/performance were addressed. The Chief Officer 
acknowledged the need for appropriate direct management  and said there were 
a number of ways that the CPRs addressed the issue of contract management.  
He advised that at the end of every contract an assessment was made about the 
contractor.  This was an area which the Audit Committee was concerned about 
and the importance of contract management and contact evaluation was 
emphasised in the training on procurement.  The Audit Committee had 
requested a follow up report about how the CPRs are managed in practice.

Councillor Chris Bithell asked if approved contractors could be asked to 
submit and validate a list of the sub-contractors they intended to use.  The Chief 
Officer explained that this information should form part of the contract 
arrangement between the Authority and the approved contractor so that the 
Authority was aware of who the sub-contractors are.  

In response to a suggestion made by Councillor George Hardcastle that a 
percentage of the payment to the contractor should be withheld until all work was 
satisfactorily completed, the Chief Officer explained that the current practice was 
that a percentage of the payment is retained until the work ‘settles’ and any 
problems arising fully addressed.  

    

Page 5



4

RESOLVED:

That the Committee recommends Council:

 adopts the proposed CPRs
 harmonises delegated authority levels for spending decisions within the 

Constitution with effect from 1 November 2016 

5. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER   

The Internal Audit Manager introduced the Principal Auditor who would be 
presenting the report.  The Principal Auditor provided background information 
and advised that the current Charter had been reviewed to ensure it met all legal 
and regulatory requirements.  The report detailed the results of the review and 
the revised draft Charter, which had been considered and approved by the Audit 
Committee at its meeting on 26 September 2016, and was appended to the 
report.

Councillor Dave Mackie commented that it was difficult to compare the 
changes between the revised and the existing Charter on an ‘i’pad and 
suggested that it would be helpful if a copy with tracked changes was provided to 
the Committee in future.  It was agreed that this would be done.

RESOLVED:

That the updated Internal Audit Charter, as approved by the Audit Committee, be 
agreed. 

6. REVIEW OF THE NEW REPORT FORMAT  

The Member Engagement Manager introduced a report to update the 
Committee following a year of using the new format,    He advised that the 
feedback from Members and Officers had been positive and only a slight change 
was required concerning the guidance on completion of the Risk Management 
section.  It was suggested that the report format be reviewed regularly to ensure 
it is effective.   

Councillor Dave Mackie suggested some improvements to make reports 
more ‘i’pad friendly.  He also referred to the need to include track changes where 
revised documents were submitted for consideration to ease comparison.  

In response to a query from Councillor Arnold Woolley concerning 
Equalities Impact Assessments (EIAs) the Member Engagement Manager 
advised that the issue of EIAs would be addressed by revising the guidance on 
completion of the Risk Management Section.  

Councillor Chris Bithell commented on the need to reduce duplication of 
information in reports to the Planning Committee.  The Member Engagement 
Manager agreed to raise the matter with the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) and acknowledged the need for consistency in report writing.  The 

Page 6



5

Chief Officer also emphasised the need  for all report writers to be aware of 
providing clear and succinct reports.

RESOLVED:

That we continue to use the new report format which will include revised 
guidance on the Quality Impact Assessments.   

7. DRAFT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT  

The Member Engagement Manager introduced a report on the draft 
Overview & Scrutiny Annual Report for the 2015/16 municipal year.  He advised 
that the draft Report for 2015/16 included an article on the use of the call in 
process, as requested at Council on 20 October 2015. The Member 
Engagement Manager explained that the foreword had not been drafted as it 
was suggested that this be done to reflect the Committee’s consideration of the 
Annual Report and be inserted before submission to Council.  He went on to 
suggest an appropriate form of words to reflect the discussion which had taken 
place.  The draft report was appended for comment and approval.

RESOLVED:

Having considered the Overview & Scrutiny Annual Report for 2015/16 the 
Committee was satisfied with it and commended it to the next meeting of the 
County Council.

8.  MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press or public in attendance.
          
(The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and finished at 11.25 am.)

…………………………
Chairman 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Wednesday, 1st February 2017

Report Subject Amendments to the Constitution

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

Report Author Democratic Services Manager

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Council is going through a period of structural change with posts being 
deleted or changed.  As a consequence post titles often change and there is a 
need to correct references within the constitution.  Whilst there is a process for 
making minor amendments to the Constitution with the consent of group leaders it 
was not designed for this sort of administrative amendment.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Where any future changes are solely to officer designations arising out of 
restructuring, that the Chief Officer (Governance) and the Democratic 
Services Manager be authorised to have those changes made to the 
Constitution.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 MAINTAINING THE CONSTITUTION

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

Members will be aware that our Constitution is, by its very nature, a large 
document. It is also a document which needs to be properly maintained to 
ensure that it is still both current and correct.

Given the extent of organisational changes which the Council has 
undergone within the last few years, and anticipating that further changes 
may be made in the future, it is useful to consider how we currently 
maintain the Constitution.

When there are changes to the Constitution, the established practice is 
that a report is made to this committee. Any changes are then dealt with 
through Group Leaders. If they are satisfied that proposed changes are 
acceptable, the former Democracy & Governance Manager was able to 
make the changes. On occasion, recommendations from the committee 
were made to Council before changes were incorporated.

To streamline future changes to the Constitution, in cases of restructuring, 
it is suggested that where the changes relate solely to changes in job title, 
rather than matters of procedural detail, that the Democratic Services 
Manager and the Chief Officer (Governance) be authorised to make such 
changes.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 The recommendations within the report, if supported such provide for 
better use of resources through greater operational efficiency.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED/CARRIED OUT

3.01 Group leaders have been consulted on the contents of this report: any 
responses received will be reported to the committee.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 The recommendations within the report, if supported such provide for 
better use of resources and reduced risk management through greater 
operational efficiency.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 None.

Page 10



6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins, Democratic Services Manager
Telephone: 01352 702320
E-mail: robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

There are no technical terms used within this report.

Page 11

mailto:robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting 1 February 2017

Report Subject Annual Review of the Code of Corporate Governance

Portfolio Holder Leader of the Council

Report Author Chief Executive

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Code of Corporate Governance forms part of the Constitution. It is reviewed 
and updated annually to ensure it is up to date and complies with all relevant 
legislation and other requirements.

The revised Code has been endorsed by the Audit Committee on 25 January 
2017.

The Code of Corporate Governance forms part of the Council’s Constitution and is 
presented for endorsement and inclusion within the Constitution.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. The Committee to endorse the updated Code of Corporate Governance for 
adoption as part of the Council’s Constitution.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE REVIEW OF THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE 

1.01 The Corporate Governance Working Group (CGWG) has two main roles:- 
the annual review of the Code of Corporate Governance; and the preparation 
of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 

Under both roles the Group prepares the draft documentation for 
consideration by the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Section 151 
Officer prior to consideration by the Audit Committee. The membership of 
this officer working group is shown in Appendix 1.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



1.02 The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance forms part of the Constitution 
and applies to all parts of the Council’s business. Members and employees 
of the Council in carrying out its business must conduct themselves in 
accordance with the high standards expected. 

The Code draws from work and guidance by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) / Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives (SOLACE) and their joint document entitled ‘Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: Guidance Notes for Welsh Authorities 
2016’.

1.03 The relationship between the CIPFA /SOLACE guidance, the Code of 
Corporate Governance, the Annual Governance Statement, Improvement 
Plan and the Audit Committee’s responsibilities for these and risk 
management, is shown in the diagram below.

1.04 The CIPFA/SOLACE Guidance note for Welsh Authorities was received in 
December having been revised to take account of Welsh legislation and 
Wales only policies in particular the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015.  

The CIPFA/SOLACE Framework is intended to assist authorities in ensuring 
that:

 resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and 
according to priorities;

 there is sound and inclusive decision making; and
 there is clear accountability for the use of those resources in order to 

achieve desired outcomes for service users and communities.

The newly outlined principles and sub-principles of the Framework are 
significantly different from the previous ones.  As a result the Code of 
Corporate Governance this year looks different to previous versions.  The 
format has been simplified and modernised with an increased use of 
hyperlinks.

Page 14



The updating and formatting review of the code was initially carried out by 
the Corporate Governance Working Group followed by consultation with the 
Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer. 

The revised code can be seen at Appendix 2.

1.05 The principles for this year’s code (taken from the Framework) are as follows:
A – Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting the law
B -  Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
C – Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and 
environmental benefits
D – Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 
the intended outcomes
E – Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 
and the individuals within it
F -  Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and 
strong public financial management
G - Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to 
deliver effective accountability.
The main changes for this year are in relation to principles C, D and G which 
have been expanded upon and made more explicit taking into account 
national legislation. 

1.06 The revised Code has been considered and fully endorsed by the Audit 
Committee at their recent meeting on 25 January.

1.07 The revised principles of the Code have been used in questionnaires to Chief 
Officers and Overview and Scrutiny Committee chairs to help inform the 
preparation of the Annual Governance Statement.

2.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None as a direct result of this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 With the Corporate Governance Working Group, Chief Executive, 
Monitoring Officer, section 151 Officer and senior officers where 
appropriate.

The Audit Committee were involved in endorsing the Code at their recent 
January meeting.

Page 15



4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 The main risk is in not updating the Code, meaning it does not reflect the
systems in place or meet the requirements.

Similarly, in order to comply with requirements, the AGS needs to be
prepared each year with input from members and officers, including
an annual review of the effectiveness of governance.

Both these risks are addressed through the adopted processes and 
approach each year, which reflect new or additional best practice and 
guidance.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1: Compilation of Officer Working Group

Appendix 2:  Code of Corporate Governance

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Contact Officer: Karen Armstrong, Corporate Business and 
Communications Executive Officer
Telephone: 01352 702740
E-mail: karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 (1) Corporate Governance: the system by which local authorities direct
and control their functions and relate to their communities. It is founded on
the basic principles of openness and inclusivity, integrity and accountability
together with the overarching concept of leadership. It is an inter-related
system that brings together the underlying set of legislative requirements,
governance principles and management processes.

Page 16

mailto:karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk


Corporate Governance Working Group Membership

Karen Armstrong (Chair) Corporate Business and Communications Executive Officer

Chris Phillips Performance Team Leader

Lisa Brownbill Interim Internal Audit Manager

Sue Ridings Accountant

Robert Robins Democratic Services Manager

November 2016

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



1

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework

Flintshire County Council – Code of Corporate Governance 2016

Section Core Principles Page

A Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law 2

B Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 5

C Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 8

D Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievements of the intended outcomes 11

E Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it 14

F Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong financial management 18

G Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability 24

Assurance Statement 27

P
age 19



2

A. Core principle: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaving with integrity

1. Ensuring members and employees behave with integrity and lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visibly and consistently 
demonstrated thereby protecting the reputation of the Organisation. 

2. Ensuring members take the lead in establishing specific values for the organisation and its employees and that they are communicated and 
understood. These should build on the Seven Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles) 

3. Leading by example and using these standard operating principles or values as a framework for decision making and other actions. 
4. Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard operating principles or values through appropriate policies/processes such as which 

are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating effectively. 

 The Council’s Constitution contains the general principles for the Council’s governance arrangements and the Monitoring Officer monitors and 
reviews its operation to ensure that the aims and principles are given full effect and kept relevant. Sections 19-23 of the Constitution have the 
Codes of Conduct and Protocols which Members and Officers (employees) have agreed to comply with. The Council requires members, whether 
they are elected or co-opted, to sign and to be bound by our Code of Conduct. Collectively, these codes and protocols set standards of behaviour 
as follows.  This information can be found in the Constitution:
 Code of Conduct for Members (1,2,3,& 4) 
 The Flintshire Standard  which contains a Local Resolution Procedure for complaints about member behaviour (1,2,3 & 4) 
 Protocol for members in their dealings with contractors, developers and other third parties. (1,3 & 4)  
 Protocol on Member/ Officer relations (1,2,3 & 4) 
 Officers’ Code of Conduct (1,3 & 4) 

 The Council operates an effective elections protocol, ensuring high standards are upheld during election periods. (1)

 Employees are also bound by a policy of ‘politically restricted posts’.  This policy ensures that all qualifying employees comply with any statutory 
restrictions on their political activities. (1)

 The Council has an appraisal system for employees which is based on the Council’s Behavioural Competency Framework  (3) and links to the 
Council’s objectives set out in the annual Improvement Plan. There are also Diversity and Equality  and Dignity at Work  policies. (1,2,3 & 4)

 The Council has an Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy, Fraud Response Plan and a Whistleblowing Policy which are reviewed and updated 
periodically. (1,2, 3, & 4)

P
age 20

http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Document-Repository/Governance/Democratic-Services/Constitution.pdf
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Document-Repository/People-and-Resources/HR/Procedures/Competency-Framework.pdf
file:///C:/Users/ctausxg/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZP4F87DG/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20C/Improvement-Plan-2016-17-Final.pdf
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Policies-Forms-and-Procedures/Policies/Diversity-Equality-Policy.aspx
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Document-Repository/People-and-Resources/HR/Policies/Dignity-at-Work-Policy/DignityatWorkPolicyFinalVersion291110.pdf
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Document-Repository/People-and-Resources/Finance/Policies/Antifraud-and-Corruption-Strategy.pdf
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Document-Repository/People-and-Resources/Finance/Procedures/Fraud-Response-Plan.pdf
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Document-Repository/People-and-Resources/Finance/Policies/Whistleblowing-Final-Version-amended-Nov14.doc.pdf


3

Demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values

5. Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the organisation’s ethical standards and performance
6. Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and ensuring they permeate all aspects of the organisation’s operation
7. Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical values
8. Ensuring the external providers of services on behalf of the organisation are required to act with integrity and in compliance with high ethical 

standards expected by the organisation 

 The Council’s reputation and standing are important, and the Council’s commitment to the rule of law and ethical values is expressed in:  ‘Gorau 
Tarian Cyfiawnder’ (The Best Shield is Justice) which is the motto on the Council’s coat of arms.  The Council observes the seven principles of 
public life (Nolan principles) which are selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership Striking the Balance 
- Upholding the Seven Principles of Public Life in Regulation

 The Council’s commitment to these principles is shown in the codes and policies below which is found in the constitution:
 Code of Conduct for Members (5,6) 
 The Flintshire Standard  which contains a Local Resolution Procedure for complaints about member behaviour (5,6) 
  Protocol for members in their dealings with contractors, developers and other third parties. (5,6) 
  Protocol on Member/ Officer relations (5,6) 
 Officers’ Code of Conduct (5,6) 

 The Constitution contains comprehensive Contract and Financial Procedure Rules governing the procurement process to be adopted in 
conducting the Council’s business, they are available on the website. The Contract Procedure Rules  were reviewed in 2016 and Financial 
Procedure Rules  are reviewed every two years. (7)

 The Council’s Procurement Strategy  enables the delivery of cost effective goods and services and ensures that the contribution of the Council’s 
procurement activity on the local economy, especially social enterprise is improved. (7) 

 The Contract Procedure Rules ensure that obligations under the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 as well as the Public Sector 
Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010 are complied with. (8) 

P
age 21

file://flintshire.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/554817/Striking_the_Balance__web__-_v3_220916.pdf
file://flintshire.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/554817/Striking_the_Balance__web__-_v3_220916.pdf
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Document-Repository/Governance/Democratic-Services/Constitution.pdf
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Document-Repository/Governance/Procurement/Contract-Procedure-Rules.pdf
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Document-Repository/People-and-Resources/Finance/Procedures/FPRs-New-Format-March-2015.pdf
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Document-Repository/People-and-Resources/Finance/Procedures/FPRs-New-Format-March-2015.pdf
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Budgets-and-Finance/Procurement.aspx
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-act/?lang=en
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Policies-Forms-and-Procedures/Policies/Diversity-Equality-Policy.aspx


4

Respecting the rule of law

9. Ensuring members and employees demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule of the law as well as adhering to relevant laws and regulations. 
10. Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other key post holders and members are able to fulfil their responsibilities in 

accordance with legislative and regulatory requirements. 
11. Striving to optimise the use the Council’s full powers available for the benefit of its citizens, its communities and other stakeholders.
12. Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively. 
13. Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively. 

 The Council’s Chief Officer (Governance) is the Monitoring Officer and Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO) (9,10,11,12,13)

 The Internal Audit function within the Governance Portfolio reports regularly to the Audit Committee.  Membership of the Audit committee 
includes an independent lay member. (9,11,12,13)

 The Council has a Standards Committee comprising nine members, five of whom are independent of the Council, three are county councillors 
and the other represents community councils. The committee promotes and maintains high standards of conduct by councillors and co-opted 
members. (9,10,11,12,13)

 The Council’s relationship with the Wales Audit Office and other regulatory bodies remains strong. (11) 

 The Council has a robust Overview & Scrutiny function which consists of six committees which each have 15 elected members and dedicated 
officer support.  (9,10,11) The committees are: 
 Community & Enterprise;
 Corporate Resources;
 Education & Youth, which has five statutory co-optees;
 Environment;
 Organisational Change; and 
 Social & Healthcare

 If the Council fail to address or resolve customer complaints to the complainant’s satisfaction, they have recourse to the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales, whose contact details are published on the Council’s website. (9,10,12,13)

 The Council is answerable to other regulatory/statutory bodies, examples include Information Commissioner’s Office and the Equality and 
Human Rights Commission, plus the four Welsh Commissioners for Welsh Language, Future Generations, Children and Older People. (9, 
11,12)

P
age 22



5

B.       Core principle: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Openness

14. Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and communicating the organisation’s commitment to openness. 
15. Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The presumption is for openness.  If that 

is not the case, a justification for the reasoning for keeping decisions confidential should be provided. 
16. Provide clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records and explanations to stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria, 

rationale and considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the impact and consequences of those decisions are clear. 
17. Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the most appropriate and effective interventions / courses of action. 

 The Council uses the website, its intranet and its partner and partnership networks to continually demonstrate its commitment to openness. 
(14)

 Most reports are considered in public and in the cases where this is not the case, the Committee has resolved to exclude the press and public 
after the Monitoring Officer or Deputy Monitoring Officer have decided there is a proper legal basis for doing so.  The Council’s Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees produce an annual report on their work which is considered by the Council. (15)

 The report author provides a summary of the main features of the report, which identifies how the recommendations have been arrived at. 
The executive summary assists in terms of presenting the report.  Meetings of the full Council and the Planning & Development Control 
Committee are now web-cast and minutes of other meetings are drafted to provide the reader with the ‘sense’ of the meeting, leading to the 
decisions made which are reflected in the resolutions recorded. (16)

 Consultation and engagement with customers and communities takes place on a number of different levels: representative democracy through 
elected members, structured engagement through for example the County Forum meetings (with Town and Community Councils), formal 
needs assessments through strategic partnerships, surveys and feedback mechanisms such as workshops and roadshows. The methods 
used are selected according to requirements, audience and coverage. The feedback received helps to shape and develop how the Council 
does things and assists decision makers in understanding the impacts on communities. (17)

 The Council has Core Principles for Public Engagement and Consultation, a Compliments, Concerns and Complaints feedback arrangement 
and a Customer Services Strategy  (17) 

 The Council’s consultation and engagement practices are varied in both scale and method depending upon the nature of the subject area.  

P
age 23

http://modgov:9070/documents/s40213/Overview%20Scrutiny%20Annual%20Report%20for%20201516.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Your-Council/FCC-Core-Principles-of-Engagement-and-Consultation.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Customer-Services/Compliments,-Concerns--Complaints-.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Customer-Services/Compliments,-Concerns--Complaints-Policy.PDF


6

They can range from a voluntary household survey on a variety of council issues to a detailed statutory engagement process such as school 
reviews. (17)

Engaging comprehensively with institutional stakeholders

18. Effectively engaging with stakeholders to ensure that the purpose, objective and intended outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear 
so that outcomes are achieved successfully and sustainably. 

19. Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be used more effectively and outcomes achieved more effectively. 
20. Ensuring that partnerships are based on trust, a shared commitments to change, a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among partners; 

and that the added value of partnership working is explicit. 

 The Council has channels of communication with all sections of the community and other stakeholders and puts in place proper monitoring 
arrangements to ensure they operate effectively (18)

          The Council has many ways of communicating with its citizens and stakeholders, including: -
o The e-magazine ‘Your Council’
o Website
o Social Media
o Publications and leaflets
o Events
o Established links and regular meetings with local interest groups/forums
o Invitations to members of the public to submit issues they consider should be considered by Overview and Scrutiny Committees
o Consultation on the budget process with local stakeholders (residents and businesses) to help shape its budget proposals and 

encourage community involvement. 

 The Council has formal and informal collaborative arrangements with other institutional stakeholders to allow for resources to be used more 
effectively and outcomes achieved more effectively.  The statutorily based Public Services Board is one of many collaboration partnerships 
across agencies; other collaborations revolve around regional services e.g. education (GwE) and Social Services Commissioning Hub.  Other 
strategic partnerships include the Voluntary Sector Compact, People are Safe Board, Health, Wellbeing and Independence Board, the Part 9 
Board, Regional Safeguarding Board and the North Wales Economic Ambition Board. (19) 

 Whenever a new partnership is created, care is taken to ensure that its legal status is clear, that it has appropriate terms of reference and that 
representatives are aware of the extent to which they can bind the Council.  The Cabinet has set and agreed a protocol for the governance of 
partnership working including the full involvement of appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees and the Audit Committee.  Partnership 
self-assessments include assessing the behaviour, performance, value for money and procedures of partnership arrangements. (20)

Engaging Stakeholder effectively, including individual citizens and service users

P
age 24

file://flintshire.gov.uk/shared/FCC_Fileshare_Multipath/Corporate%20Governance/2016.17/Code%20of%20Corporate%20Governance%202016/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20B/Final%20Flintshire%20PSB%20Constitution%20and%20Terms%20of%20Reference.pdf
file://flintshire.gov.uk/shared/FCC_Fileshare_Multipath/Corporate%20Governance/2016.17/Code%20of%20Corporate%20Governance%202016/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20B/Self-Assessment%20Template%20v3%20-Jan%202016.docx
file://flintshire.gov.uk/shared/FCC_Fileshare_Multipath/Corporate%20Governance/2016.17/Code%20of%20Corporate%20Governance%202016/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20B/Self-Assessment%20Template%20v3%20-Jan%202016.docx


7

21. Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the organisation will meaningfully consult with or involve individual citizens, service users 
and other stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision is contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes. 

22. Ensuring communication methods are effective and that members and employees are clear about their roles with regard to community 
engagement.

23. Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and experiences of citizens, service users and organisations of different backgrounds including 
reference to future needs. 

24. Implementing effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how their views have been taken into account. 
25. Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity. 
26. Taking account of the interests of future generations of tax payers and services users. 

 The Council has a consultation and engagement framework and guidelines/policy document plus adoption of a set of core consultation and 
engagement principles based on nationally identified best practice. (21,23,24)

 Communication methods are continually being reviewed to adapt to changing technologies and their impact.  Members and employees have 
clear roles of accountability; members through their representative democracy and employees through more structured assessments, surveys 
and other ongoing impact and evidence gathering conversations such as those in Social Services. (22)

 The Council takes into account the impact and consequences of decisions on all members of the community through integrated assessment 
planning; especially with regard to budget planning and alternative delivery models. (25)

 The Council makes prudent judgements about the use of resources in line with the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act. (26)

P
age 25



8

C. Core principle: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

Defining outcomes

27. Having a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of the organisation’s purpose and intended outcomes containing appropriate 
performance indicators, which provides the basis for the organisation’s overall strategy, planning and other decisions. 

28. Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including individual citizens and service users. It could be immediately or over 
the course of a year or longer. 

29. Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources that will be available. 
30. Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of outcomes. 
31. Managing expectations effectively with regard to determining priorities and making the best use of the resources available. 

 The County Council’s Improvement Plan 2012 – 2017 is available on the Council’s website. (27, 28) 

 The Council sets a number of priorities for itself as an individual partner. Priorities for the 2016/17 Improvement Plan are: Housing, Environment, 
Living Well, Poverty, Modern and Efficient Council, Economy & Enterprise, Skills and Learning and Safe Communities. These priorities are 
reviewed in terms of impact of particular changes. (28)

 The Council has a resilient approach to Business Planning for sustainable services including efficiency planning to meet reductions in national 
funding and increases in local demands and pressures. The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy – summary 2016/17 describes the 
Council’s approach to maintaining valued services within the financial constraints.  (29)

 Risk management is integral to the Council’s delivery of objectives, statutory duties, project and change programmes and partnership delivery.  
It is considered during development and monitoring of all the Council’s priorities, projects and Portfolio Business Plans.  Strategic risks within 
the Council’s Improvement Plan are monitored quarterly and reported to Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  The Audit Committee 
receives a half yearly report on these risks. Programme Boards monitor all Business Plan risks. (Risk Management Policy and Strategy) (30)

 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy and Capital Strategy and Asset Management Plan 2016 – 2020 outline the resources that are 
available to deliver outcomes.  (29)

 The Council’s Portfolio Business Plan Programme measures efficiencies, reviews impact (acceptability and deliverability) with more in-depth 
impact assessments being undertaken where appropriate. (31,32)

P
age 26

file:///C:/Users/ctausxg/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZP4F87DG/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20C/Improvement-Plan-2016-17-Final.pdf
file:///C:/Users/ctausxg/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZP4F87DG/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20D/Summary-Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy.pdf
file://flintshire.gov.uk/shared/FCC_Fileshare_Multipath/Corporate%20Governance/2016.17/Code%20of%20Corporate%20Governance%202016/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20C/FINAL%20-%20RM%20Policy%20&%20Strategy%20v5%20.docx
file:///C:/Users/ctausxg/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZP4F87DG/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20D/Summary-Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy.pdf
http://modgov:9070/documents/s35485/Enc.%201%20for%20Draft%20Capital%20Strategy%20and%20Asset%20Management%20Plan%202015%20-%202020.pdf


9

 In addition the Council is supported by a number of corporate strategies which provide a clear framework for the management of Council 
resources and support council change and transition.  These strategies are: the Medium Term Financial Strategy, the Capital Strategy and 
Asset Management Plan, the Digital Strategy, the Customer Strategy and People Strategy. (32)

Sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 

32. Considering and balancing the combined economic, social and environmental impact of policies, plans and decisions when taking decisions 
about service provision. 

33. Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision making, taking account of risk and acting transparently whether there are potential conflicts 
between the Council’s intended outcomes and short-term factors such as the political cycle or financial constraints. 

34. Determining the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting interests between achieving the various economic, social and 
environmental benefits, through consultation where possible, in order to ensure appropriate trade-offs. 

35. Ensuring fair access to services. 

 The Council is working towards the Well-being of Future Generations (WBFG) principles of sustainability which include economic, social, 
environmental and cultural impacts within all of its objectives and obligations. (32,33)

 The Council’s budget setting policy and approach is one which seeks to protect and sustain for the longer term valuable public services.(32,33)

 The Council has an updated, standard report format and supporting guidance. Report authors are expected to complete any risks and impacts 
when a section of the report “Key Risks and Mitigation”, which they have identified during the preparation process and the mitigation measures 
which they have proposed or have put in place to address these. This must include a paragraph in the main body of the report to confirm that 
an Equality and Welsh Language Impact Assessment (EWLIA) to comply with the Equality Act 2010 Public Sector Equality Duties and Welsh 
Language Standards has been carried out.  If a EWLIA has not been completed, authors are required to state the reasons why one was not 
needed.  (32)
Reports must also consider any implications under the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. This places a sustainable 
development and wellbeing duty on public bodies, together with the need to measure performance towards those wellbeing goals and 
objectives. (32,33 and 34)

 The annual Capital programme is linked to the Capital Strategy and Asset Management Plan 2016 – 2020 and is available on the website.  
(32,33)

 The Council’s Capital and Asset Management Strategy is in three parts, Statutory/Regulatory, Retained Assets and Investments. The 
Investment section is for new schemes arising from Portfolio Business Plans and the Improvement Plan based on sound business cases. (32)

 Equality and Welsh Language Impact Assessments are undertaken and published in relation to policy and business decisions as well as setting 

P
age 27

http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-act/?lang=en
http://modgov:9070/documents/s35485/Enc.%201%20for%20Draft%20Capital%20Strategy%20and%20Asset%20Management%20Plan%202015%20-%202020.pdf


10

the budget. These are being reviewed to integrate all requirements of the WBFG (34,35)

P
age 28



11

D. Core principle: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievements of the intended outcomes

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

Determining interventions

36. Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety of options indicating how intended outcomes would be achieved 
and including the risks associated with those options.  Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however services are provided. 

37. Considering feedback from citizens and service users when making decisions about service improvements or where services are no longer 
required in order to prioritise competing demands within limited resources available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in 
mind future impacts. 

 Discussions between Members and employees on the information needs of members to support decision making can take place in a number 
of ways: formally at a committee meeting, Task & Finish group or workshop, or informally at a briefing. (36) Examples can be found within the 
Committee System- particularly when considering Business Plan efficiency proposals and quarterly performance reports.

 During discussions at committees, additional information can be requested. This is with agreement of the timescales. (37) Examples can be 
found in committee minutes.

 Report authors are required to indicate what consultation was required, undertaken and the results. Section B provides further details. Report 
guidance is within the template and the report guidance. (39) Guidance Notes. 

Planning interventions

38. Establishing and implementing robust planning and control cycles that cover strategic and operational plans, priorities and targets.
39. Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in determining how services and other interventions can best be delivered.
40. Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when working collaboratively including shared risks.
41. Ensuring arrangements are flexible/agile so that the mechanisms for delivering outputs can be adapted to changing circumstances.
42. Establishing appropriate local performance indicators (as well as statutory or other national performance indicators) as part of the planning 

process in order to assess how the performance of services is to be measured.
43. Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information required to review service quality regularly.
44. Preparing budgets in accordance with organisational objectives, strategies and the medium term financial strategy.
45. Informing medium and long term resources planning by drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital expenditure aimed at developing 

a sustainable funding strategy.

 The Council’s Schedule of Meetings for the ensuing municipal year is considered at the Annual Meeting of Council which is held each May. 

P
age 29

http://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?XXR=0&Year=2016&Page=1&EB=F&LLL=0
http://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://modgov:9070/documents/s18215/GuidanceNotesReportAuthors.doc.pdf?


12

The Forward Work Programme for Council, Cabinet and Committees is considered at each meeting of the Cabinet. Each of the six Overview 
& Scrutiny committees reconsiders its forward work programme at each ordinary meeting. This ensures that it stays relevant to committee 
needs. (38,39)

 Business planning and objective planning and monitoring are contained within quarterly and Improvement Plan reporting. (39) 

 The Council’s consultation and engagement framework and guidelines/policy document policy provides guidance regarding internal and 
external stakeholder involvement. In addition co-production is being used as a methodology (especially in Social Services) to involve users in 
the commissioning of services. (39)

 The Council has a range of partnerships working at different levels.  Risk management is an important and essential consideration for all 
partnerships that the Council lead on. This can be demonstrated by the partnership self-assessment that the Strategic Partnerships undertake 
on a bi-annual basis to determine risks/challenges for each of the partners and the partnership itself. (40)

 Reviews of shared risks are undertaken at the various partnership boards. (40)

 A regular reviews of plans is undertaken at strategic levels during quarterly monitoring.  The Council’s Programme Boards also review efficiency 
plans on a monthly basis. (41)

 In setting direction and prioritising resources the Council sets performance targets against each priority and monitors them through the use of 
National Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) set by the Welsh Government, and local indicators set by the Council. Performance indicators are 
the ‘success measures’ for the Council and viewed publicly by Government and regulators. (42) 

 The CAMMS system (performance, risk and project management system) assists with the capacity requirements both at portfolio level and 
corporately to review service quality.  The Council also engages with a range of benchmarking groups such as the Association for Public Service 
Excellence (APSE), CLAW etc. to review service quality and productivity. (42) 

 An integral part of business planning is understanding and taking action against risks related to the business.  The Council’s risk management 
processes are embedded and include, operational, project, strategic, and collaborative partnerships risks.  A corporate risk management model 
as described in the Risk Management Strategy and Policy supports these arrangements. The Council’s strategic risks are included within the 
Improvement Plan  which is embedded within the portfolio business planning processes. This is supplemented by external review and 
inspection. (43)

 Reports include detailed performance results and highlight areas where corrective action is necessary (43)

 Budgets are prepared in accordance with organisational objectives, strategies and the Medium Term Financial  Strategy (MTFS) (44) 

P
age 30

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Your-Council/FCC-Core-Principles-of-Engagement-and-Consultation.pdf
file:///C:/Users/ctausxg/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZP4F87DG/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20D/FINAL%20-%20RM%20Policy%20&%20Strategy%20v5%20.pdf
file:///C:/Users/ctausxg/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZP4F87DG/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20D/FINAL%20-%20RM%20Policy%20&%20Strategy%20v5%20.pdf
file:///C:/Users/ctausxg/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZP4F87DG/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20D/1617-01173%20Improvement%20Plan%20v7_Final_01072016.pdf
file:///C:/Users/ctausxg/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZP4F87DG/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20D/Summary-Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy.pdf


13

 The MTFS and annual budget setting process aims to ensure that planning decisions are informed by realistic estimates of expenditure and 
revenue (45)

Optimising achievement of intended outcomes

46. Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances off service priorities, affordability and other resource constraints. 
47. Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the full cost of operations over the medium and longer term. 
48. Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to changes in 

the external environment that may arise during the budgetary period in order for outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage. 
49. Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ or ‘community benefits’ through service planning and commissioning.  The Public Services (Social 

Value) Act 2012 states that this is “the additional benefit to the community… over and above the direct purchasing of goods, services and 
outcomes”

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy and annual budget setting process integrates priorities with resource constraints. The Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) is in two parts. The first forecasts the resources the Council is likely to have over the next three years. The second 
part Meeting the Financial Challenge sets out plans and solutions for managing with reducing resources over this three year period.  (46,47) 

 The annual budgeting process and Portfolio business plans take into account the medium and long term priorities from the MTFS aligned with 
the resources made available to the Council. (46,47,48)

 The Procurement Strategy and Contract Procedure Rules  ensure that adequate emphasis is placed on ‘community benefit’. (49) 

P
age 31

file:///C:/Users/ctausxg/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZP4F87DG/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20D/Summary-Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-2-September-2015.pdf
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Budgets-and-Finance/Procurement.aspx
http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Document-Repository/Governance/Procurement/Contract-Procedure-Rules.pdf


14

E. Core principle: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the entity’s capacity
50. Reviewing operations, performance and, use of assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness. 
51. Improving resource use through appropriate application of techniques such as benchmarking and other options in order to determine how the 

Council’s resources are allocated so that outcomes are achieved effectively and efficiently. 
52. Recognising the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where added value can be achieved. 
53. Developing and maintaining an effective workforce plan to enhance strategic allocation of resources.

 The annual Improvement Plan provides detailed information of the Council’s plans and their desired impacts. (50,51)

 The Annual Performance Report provides a general performance and progress profile as to how the Council is improving the level of efficiency 
and effectiveness of its services in line with its Improvement Plan. (50,51)

 The Council’s Capital Strategy and Asset Management Plan as agreed by County Council in January 2016 also provides a longer term (10 
year) view which is to be reviewed on a  periodic basis. (50,51)

 The Council engages with a range of benchmarking groups such as the Association of Public Service Excellence; Consortium of Local 
Authorities in Wales; CIPFA etc. to review service quality and productivity. (51) 

 The Wales Audit Office review the Council’s performance and value for money arrangements through their Improvement Assessment work and 
report their findings in various letters and their Annual Improvement Report. (51,52)

 The Council has developed employee capacity and assurance methodologies to support change management using such techniques as 
transition plan management and service resilience and efficiency statements. (51,52)

 The benefits of collaborative working with partners can be seen through the work of the Flintshire Public Services Board and its predecessor 
the Local Service Board. Flintshire is the lead on the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project, having recognised that the scale and 
cost was beyond the capacity of a single local authority acting alone.  The value of partnership and collaborative working is recognised by the 
Council as something that helps sustain services and provides added value to programmes such as intervention and prevention, where one 
partner acting alone cannot effect the change that is needed. (53)

 The Council’s People Strategy has been considered and endorsed by the Cabinet and the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny 

P
age 32

file://flintshire.gov.uk/shared/FCC_Fileshare_Multipath/Corporate%20Governance/2016.17/Code%20of%20Corporate%20Governance%202016/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20E/People%20Strategy%202016%20-%202019.pdf


15

Committee. (53) 

Developing the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals

54. Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders negotiate their respective roles early on in the relationship and that a shared 
understanding of roles and objectives is maintained. 

55. Publishing a statement that specifies the types of decisions delegated to the executive and those reserved for the collective decision making of 
the Council. 

56. Ensuring the leader and the chief executive have clearly defined and distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby the chief executive 
leads the Council in implementing strategy and managing the delivery of services and other outputs set by members and each provides a check 
and a balance for each other’s authority. 

57. Developing the capabilities of members and senior management to achieve effective shared leadership and to enable the Council to respond 
successfully to changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, political and environmental changes and risks. 

58. Ensuring employees have access to appropriate induction tailored to their role with ongoing training and development matching individual and 
organisational requirements is available and encouraged. 

59. Ensuring members and employee have the appropriate skills, knowledge, resources and support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and 
ensuring that they are able to continuously update their knowledge.

60. Ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through shared learning, including lessons learnt from both internal and 
external governance weaknesses.

61. Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation 
62. Taking steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to constructive feedback from peer review and 

inspections. 
63. Holding employees to account through regular performance reviews which take account of training and development needs. 
64. Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support individuals in maintaining their own 

physical and mental wellbeing.

 The Council has adopted a Constitution, last reviewed May 2016, which includes a Delegation Scheme which identifies those decisions reserved 
to the County Council for decision, those local choice issues which are decided by the County Council, those decisions which will be taken by 
the Cabinet or its individual members, and those which are delegated to Chief Officers and senior officers.  Local choice issues are reviewed 
at the Council’s Annual Meeting. In this respect, the basic principle on which these rules are established is that the full Council sets the strategic 
direction through the adoption of policies and the budget, the Cabinet takes major decisions within the overall policy and budget framework and 
helps to develop new policies and officers take the day to day decisions within the policy and budget framework. The Delegation Scheme is 
subject to frequent review. (54,55)

 The Constitution sets out clearly the role of the Leader and Cabinet and in particular makes it clear that they are responsible for providing 

P
age 33



16

effective strategic leadership to the Council and for ensuring that the Council successfully discharges its overall responsibilities for the activities 
of the organisation as a whole. It also ensures through Financial Procedure Rules and the Scheme of Delegated Powers that there is effective 
control over the day to day conduct of the Council’s business by requiring Member approval for decisions outside defined parameters. (56)

 The Council’s Constitution includes the names and a description of the portfolios held by the Leader and other Members of the Cabinet.   Their 
respective roles have been agreed and documented.  Role descriptions are in place for all chairs and vice-chairs of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees, regulatory committees and Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committees are similarly documented.(57)

 Following the implementation of the new senior management structure in 2012, the Council is in a better position to respond successfully to 
changes in legal and policy demands. (57)

 Managers are responsible for ensuring all new employees have an induction. There is a generic induction checklist which is completed in 
addition to a service specific induction. The generic induction session is provided to groups of new employees and includes modules on 
customer care and governance. (58)

 Following County Council elections a Member induction programme is devised and delivered.  The Council ensures that Members have the 
skills required to undertake their roles and that those skills are developed on a continuing basis to improve performance through: (58)
 Development and training programmes, including those provided by professional organisations.
 Member induction training.
 A mentoring system for Members.
 An annual Member Development Programme.
 The Council’s Member Development Strategy.
 Training on the Members’ Code of Conduct.
 Specific training for Members on planning, licensing, audit and risk management.

 Section 11 and Appendix 1 of the Council’s Constitution details the roles of the Head of Paid Services, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance 
Officer (S151 Officer).  Job descriptions are also in place for all senior officers of the Council and the senior management structure is kept under 
review to ensure its continued appropriateness. (59)

 The development of action plans as a response to issues raised by the Council’s regulators, the emphasis which is placed on keeping Members 
informed and involved with new developments through workshops and the use of officer appraisals are all indicative of the Council’s commitment 
to being a ‘learning organisation’ (60)

 The Council holds annual public consultation meetings on budget proposals, in addition to having a compliments and complaints scheme and  
statutory protocols for public engagement in Overview & Scrutiny (61)

P
age 34



17

    The Council welcomes peer reviews of both governance arrangements and service delivery to improve the effectiveness of leadership. (62)

 The Council ensures that career structures are in place for all employees and encourages participation and development through: (62,63)
 development of a Corporate Performance Management framework
 development of a People Strategy
 periodic restructuring of the Council’s senior management
 annual competency based appraisals and continuous professional development

 The Council ensures that employees have the skills required to undertake their roles and that those skills are developed on a continuing basis 
to improve performance through: (63)
 Employee appraisal as part of a performance management system which also identifies training and development needs and how these 

will be met.
 Induction training.
 The development of leadership and management behavioural competencies.
 Development and training programmes, including those provided by professional organisations.
 Management Development Programme
 Senior Management Academi 

 All HR policies and Health and Wellbeing Policies are available on the internal Infonet. These include Manager support toolkits; Occupational 
Health support; development/revision of policies e.g. Drug and Alcohol abuse / Domestic abuse. (64)

P
age 35



18

F. Core principle: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong financial management

Managing risks through performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

Managing risk

65. Recognising that risk management is an integral part of all activities and must be considered in all aspects of decision making. 
66. Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements and ensuring that they are working effectively. 
67. Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly allocated.

 A refreshed approach to risk management, approved by the Audit Committee in June 2015, incorporates: (65)
 Enhanced descriptions of risk including an explanation of the impact if the ‘risk’ were to be realised and become the ‘issue’ to be dealt 

with.
 A more sophisticated risk matrix, moving from a 3 x 3 matrix to a 6 x 4 matrix for likelihood and impact; allowing more options to show 

how the risk is increasing or decreasing dependent on the success of mitigating actions and influence of external conditions.
 Clearer guidance for escalating and reviewing/reporting risk; the more the significant the risk, the more frequently it is reviewed.
 An improved format to capture both new and emerging risks and also allow for a risk to be ‘closed’ once it has been mitigated or realised 

as an issue being dealt with.
 The reporting of ‘risk’ more prominently within Council reports

 Operational risks are captured and monitored through supporting plans and strategies within their operational areas and through 
project/programme boards as appropriate. Partnership and project risks are captured by and reported to the appropriate boards. (65,66)

 The Council identifies and evaluates its strategic risks in relation to the priorities within the Improvement Plan.  These form the basis of the 
Council’s strategic risk register. Accountability for risk ownership is clearly recorded within the CAMMS system for all strategic risks.  Portfolio 
Business Plan risk owners are also clearly identified on the risk trackers.  Strategic risks are reported on a quarterly basis to Cabinet and the 
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committees as part of the Improvement Plan Monitoring Reports. Additionally, Audit Committee receives a 
report twice yearly which includes a strategic risk summary/overview and seeks assurance on actions taken to reduce risks. (66,67)

P
age 36



19

Managing performance

68. Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, specification, execution and independent post implementation review. 
69. Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice pointing out the implications and risks inherent in the organisation’s 

financial, social and environmental position and outlook.
70. Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which encourages constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives 

before, during and after decisions are made thereby enhancing the Council’s performance and that of any organisation for which it is 
responsible. 

71. Providing members and senior management with regular reports on service delivery plans and on progress towards outcome achievement.
72. Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages (such as budgets) and post implementation reporting (e.g. financial statements).

 

 Portfolio business efficiency plans focus on service reform through reduced operating costs, modernisation and improvement. Portfolio 
business plans and the associated efficiency tracking is being scheduled to be automated via the CAMMS Performance Management system.  
Post implementation review and learning is undertaken at project level and also on a more collective basis by the Chief Officer team. (68)

 Integrated impact assessments to review financial, social and environmental implications, risks and mitigations are being developed by the 
Council to bring a co-ordinated and considered model of transparency to aid decision-making. (69) 

 The Council has six Overview & Scrutiny committees (Community & Enterprise; Corporate Resources; Education & Youth; Environment; 
Organisational Change and Social & Healthcare),  which are politically balanced and comprise 15 elected members each. Each acts as a 
critical friend, providing constructive challenge in order to contribute to continuous service improvement. The terms of the committees were 
redrawn with effect from the 2015 Annual meeting of Council, following an extensive review of the committee structure.  The role of Overview 
& Scrutiny is to:

o hold the Cabinet to account, 
o assist in improving and developing Council policies, 
o monitor service delivery; and 
o contribute to improving the local community.  

This role is discharged both through consultation by the Cabinet and Chief Officers and also through the ‘calling in’ of Cabinet decisions by the 
six functional Overview & Scrutiny Committees.  Each of those Committees engages in performance monitoring and management through the 
consideration of appropriate items such as performance objectives and indicator outturns, risk identification and mitigation.  The work programmes 
of Overview & Scrutiny are updated and published on a regular basis. The involvement of the Overview & Scrutiny committees in Improvement 
and Performance is a key function, with reports being made to each of the committees on at least a quarterly basis. (70,71)

P
age 37



20

The six Overview & Scrutiny committees are:

 Community & Enterprise;
 Corporate Resources;
 Education & Youth, which has five statutory co-optees;
 Environment;
 Organisational Change; and 
 Social & Healthcare

 The agendas and minutes of meetings are published on the Council’s website and the Overview & Scrutiny Annual Report is published each 
autumn. (70,71)

 The Councils budget monitoring process and reports ensure that there is consistency between specification stages and budgets and post 
implementation reporting in financial statements, formal budget monitoring reports are reported to Members monthly at both Cabinet and the 
Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.(72)

Robust internal control

73. Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with achieving the Council’s objectives. 
74. Evaluating and monitoring the Council’s risk management and internal control on a regular basis. 
75. Ensuring effective counter-fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are in place. 
76. Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk management and control is 

provided by the internal auditor. 
77. Ensuring an audit committee or equivalent group or function which is independent of the executive provides a further source of effective 

assurance arrangements for managing risk and maintain an effective control environment and that its recommendations are listened to and 
acted upon. 

 The Council’s Risk Management Strategy and Policy plus other internal controls (financial, legal, workforce) align to the efficient and effective 
delivery of the Council’s objectives in the Improvement Plan and those of the portfolio Business Plans and other portfolio strategic plans.(73)

 The Risk Management Strategy and Policy is reviewed and endorsed by the Audit Committee; its outcomes and effectiveness being reviewed at 
least half yearly through the strategic risk reports. In addition Internal Audit undertakes regular specific reviews of the effectiveness of the Risk 
Management Strategy (74)

 Compliance with the Code of Practice on Managing Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA 2014) is assessed at each revision, non-compliance 
is identified and actions are taken to ensure compliance in line with Corporate Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy. (75)

P
age 38

http://infonet.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Document-Repository/People-and-Resources/Finance/Policies/Antifraud-and-Corruption-Strategy.pdf


21

 The Internal Audit service is provided in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and in accordance with the CIPFA 
Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit. Internal Audit ’generally conforms’ with the PSIAS requirements according to a self-
assessment  in 2015/16, which means that the relevant structures, policies and procedures of the department, as well as the processes by which 
they are applied, comply with the requirements of the Standards and of the Code of Ethics in all material respects. (76)

 The Council has an Audit Committee consisting of seven politically balanced Members and a lay member.  The Chair and Vice Chair are chosen 
by the Committee itself from amongst the opposition group(s), non-aligned Councillors, or lay member.  It meets on a regular basis and is advised 
by the Council’s Internal Audit Manager, and is normally attended by representatives of the Council’s external auditors.  All Members receive 
training and it is a requirement that only trained substitutes are allowed.  The Audit Committee is further supported in the discharge of its functions 
by:-

 Having appropriate arrangements in place for delivery of an adequate and effective Internal Audit function and ensuring adequate 
reporting arrangements to safeguard its independence.

 An up to date risk based Internal Audit Plan.
 Systematic risk assessments in all areas of the Council’s activities; both at a strategic level supporting the Council’s improvement priorities 

and at an operational Chief Officer level. (77)

Managing Data

78. Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to ensure the security 
of personal data used. 

79. Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when sharing data with other bodies. 
80. Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in decision making and performance monitoring. 

 The Data Management Framework and procedures are available to all employees via the Council’s internal Infonet. (78)

 Data Protection is within the remit of the Information Governance Manager. Under the revised General Data Protection Regulation, there is a 
statutory Data Protection Officer position that must be independent and report directly to the Chief Executive. The implications of this are being 
looked into. (78)

 Data protection policies and procedures are available on the website: (78)
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Data-Protection-and-Freedom-of-Information/Data-Protection.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Contact-Us/Privacy-Notice.aspx

P
age 39

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Data-Protection-and-Freedom-of-Information/Data-Protection.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Contact-Us/Privacy-Notice.aspx


22

 There is a template for Data Processing Agreements and all Managers are required to send completed versions to the Information Governance 
Team to be held centrally.  (78)

 The Council is signed up to the Wales Accord for Sharing Personal Information (WASPI). All Information Sharing Protocols (ISP’s) must be 
approved in line with the WASPI requirements. A log of all ISP’s is held internally but is also available on the WASPI website 

http://www.waspi.org/  (79)

 To comply with Data validation procedures all new IT systems must be assessed against the IT Technical Specification, this includes Data 
Validation. Suppliers will respond as compliant, partial compliant or non-compliant. Individual Service Managers will then decide whether to 
proceed based on the Supplier’s response. (78,79,80)

 The quality and accuracy of data is checked in a number of ways: performance data is produced through the CAMMS system (internal controls 
and rules are prescribed by the Council) and also quality checked to ensure ‘sense’ and readability.  Additionally, external checks are made by 
other bodies such as Wales Audit Office and Local Government Data Unit to ensure compliance with guidance. (80)

Strong public financial management

81. Ensuring the Council’s financial management supports both long term achievement of outcomes and short-term financial and operational 
performance. 

82. Ensuring well-developed financial management is integrated at all organisational levels of planning and control, including management of 
financial risks and controls. 

 

 The Council has a Medium Term Financial Strategy which is published on the web site. (81)

 The strategy is in two parts, the first part forecasts the resources the Council is likely to have over the next three years and part two sets out 
the plans and solutions to managing with reducing resources.(81)

 Business efficiency plans are one of three parts of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy focusing on service reform through reduced 
operating costs, modernisation and improvement. (82)

 The Council’s process for setting its annual revenue budget and capital programme is set out in the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution. When the Council sets its budget, elected members take account of the level of risk and uncertainty regarding 
its budgetary estimates in the context of the prevailing economy, public services’ climate and the demand for services. (82)

P
age 40

http://www.waspi.org/
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy.aspx


23

 The Council operates a scheme of delegated budgets supported by the Corporate Finance team which consists of central and service based 
finance teams supporting budget managers. Revenue budget monitoring reports, including full year forecasts, are reported to the Cabinet and 
the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on a monthly basis. Capital Programme monitoring reports are reported to the 
Cabinet and the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on a quarterly basis. In both instances, these reports identify reasons 
for variances and set out any corrective action that is proposed. (82)

 The Council has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountants (CIPFA) Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code 
of Practice.  Treasury Management is conducted in accordance with the Council’s Treasury Management Policy and Strategy Statement and 
Treasury Management Practices which are both reviewed annually. All borrowing and long term financing is made in accordance with CIPFA’s 
Prudential Code.  Treasury Management update reports are made to the Audit Committee, Cabinet and Council on a quarterly basis. (82)

 Wales Audit Office have issued the Council’s  Financial Resilience Report (published end Nov. 2016) (82)

P
age 41

file://flintshire.gov.uk/shared/FCC_Fileshare_Multipath/Corporate%20Governance/2016.17/Code%20of%20Corporate%20Governance%202016/Hyperlink%20documents/Part%20F/flintshire_council_annual_improvement_report_2016_english.pdf


24

G. Core principle: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability 

Implementing good practice in transparency

83. Writing and communicating reports for the public and other stakeholders in an understandable style appropriate to the intended audience and 
ensuring that they are easy to access and interrogate. 

84. Striking a balance between providing the right amount of information to satisfy transparency demands and enhance public scrutiny whilst not 
being too onerous for the Council to provide and for users to understand. 

 The Council puts as much information as possible on the Council’s website, in both English and Welsh. The report format has been revised to 
make reports simpler and shorter, with a glossary of technical terms now included. Report guidance for report authors has also been refreshed. 
The Council’s publication scheme under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 is available on the website, so that public and stakeholders can 
see what information is readily accessible. (83,84) 

 Easy read versions of strategies and public documents are made where possible for publication on the website. (83,84)

Implementing good practices in reporting

85. Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money and the stewardship of its resources. 
86. Ensuring members and senior management own the results. 
87. Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles contained in this Framework have been applied and publishing 

the results on this assessment including an action plan for improvement and evidence to demonstrate good governance (Annual Governance 
Statement).

88. Ensuring that the Framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service organisations as appropriate. 
89. Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the 

statements allow for comparison with other, similar organisations. 

 The Council publishes its Annual Performance Report and Statement of Accounts on the website. (85)

 The Statement of the Authority’s Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts is signed by the Chair of the County Council and the Chief 
Finance Officer. (86)

P
age 42

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Data-Protection-FOI/Model-Publication-Scheme-2013.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-and-Democracy/Annual-Performance-Report.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Statement-of-Accounts/Statement-of-Accounts-2014-15.pdf


25

 The Council produces this annual Code of Corporate Governance and a Governance Statement which are produced in accordance with 
CIPFA/Solace principles. (87)

 An Annual Governance Statement is presented to Audit Committee and Council for approval every year. Once approved the Statement is 
signed by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive.  The statement explains how the Council has complied with the Code of Corporate 
Governance, and met the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014. The Code of Corporate Governance 
and the Annual Governance Statement are published on the Council’s website. (87)

 If applicable, an appropriate accounting framework would be applied to jointly managed or shared services. (88)

 An audited and signed Statement of Accounts is published on an annual basis to reflect a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position, 
as judged by the Council’s external auditor (currently Wales Audit Office).  Contained within the Statement of Accounts is a statement of 
responsibilities which confirms: - (89)
 Compliance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain.
 The Council manages its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets. 
 Suitable accounting policies have been selected and consistently applied.
 Judgements and estimates made are reasonable and prudent.
 Reasonable steps have been taken to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
 Proper accounting records have been kept and are up to date.

Assurance and effective accountability

90. Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by external audit are acted upon. 
91. Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access to members is in place which provides assurance with regard to the Council’s 

governance arrangements and recommendations are acted upon. 
92. Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implementing recommendations. 
93. Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third parties and that this is evidenced in the annual governance 

statement 
94. Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are clear and that the need for wider public accountability has been 

recognised and met.

 External arrangements for regulation and assurance are provided by a number of statutorily appointed bodies principally the Wales Audit Office 
(WAO), Estyn and the Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW).The Council has a well-established practice of dealing with 
findings from the external regulatory bodies through referral to committees, formal responses and tracking, and open publication of regulatory 
reports in committee papers (with availability on the website).  An annual summary report is presented to the Audit Committee showing all 
regulatory reports, their findings, the Council’s response and where they were reported to. (90)  In addition to external regulation by statutorily 

P
age 43



26

appointed bodies the Council welcomes peer challenge from local government and the public services family e.g. Welsh Local Government 
peer review of Finance. (92)

 
 The Internal Audit service is provided in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and in accordance with the CIPFA 

Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit. Internal Audit ‘generally conforms’ with the PSIAS requirements according to a self-
assessment in 2016/17 which means that the relevant structures, policies and procedures of the department, as well as the processes by which 
they are applied, comply with the requirements of the Standards and of the Code of Ethics in all material respects. (91)

 Following the review of the Overview & Scrutiny committee structure in 2014/15, an Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny Committee is 
now in place. With a move towards alternative delivery models (ADM) for service provision, together with Community Asset Transfers (CAT) of 
major facilities such as Connah’s Quay Swimming Pool or Holywell Leisure Centre, the Committee provides the supportive capacity and 
capability to deal with such new approaches.  The committee is involved in the developmental stage of major work areas - something which 
has not been done previously. Members were reminded of the new approach to working style in the report to the Organisational Change 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee in November 2015 – The role of the committee in supporting Organisational change. (93/94) 

P
age 44

http://modgov:9070/documents/s33918/The%20role%20of%20the%20committee%20in%20supporting%20Organisational%20Change.pdf


27

Assurance Statements

I am satisfied that there are effective governance arrangements in place, including a sound system of internal control, throughout the year ended 31st 
March 2016 and that this is ongoing.

Signed Position Date

Chief Executive

Section 151 Officer

Chief Officer - GovernanceP
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Amendments to the Constitution
	5 Code of Corporate Governance
	Enc. 1 for Code of Corporate Governance
	Enc. 2 for Code of Corporate Governance


